
 
Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 846621 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
Friday, 24 September 2021, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 



 

Agenda produced and published by Abraham Ezekiel, Assistant Director for Legal and Governance County 
Hall, Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Simon Lewis, Committee Officer on 01905 
846621, slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
 
Date of Issue: Thursday, 16 September 2021 

 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
Friday, 24 September 2021, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:  Cllr Nathan Desmond (Chairman), Cllr Salman Akbar, Cllr Aled Evans, 

Cllr Laura Gretton, Cllr Peter Griffiths, Cllr Aled Luckman, 
Cllr Luke Mallett and Cllr Dan Morehead 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Apologies and Named Substitutes 
 

 

2  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3  Public Participation 
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Democratic 
Governance and Scrutiny Manager (Interim Monitoring Officer) in writing 
or by e-mail indicating the nature and content of their proposed 
participation no later than 9.00am on the working day before the meeting 
(in this case, 23 September). Further details are available on the 
Council’s website. Enquiries can be made through the telephone 
number/e-mail address below. 
 
It would be helpful if members of the public who wish to attend the 
meeting registered by e-mail with the officer below their intention to 
attend the Committee meeting. 

 

4  Confirmation of Minutes 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2021. (previously 
circulated) 

 

5  Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

1 - 10 

6  Statutory Accounts and Pension Fund 2020/21 - External Audit 
Findings Report 
 

11 - 12 

7  Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 
 

13 - 28 

8  Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2021 
 

29 - 32 

9  Risk Management Report 
 

33 - 40 

10  Income and Debt Management 41 - 44 



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

 

11  Training Programme 
 

45 - 52 

12  Work Programme 
 

53 - 54 

 



AGENDA ITEM 5 
   

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

1. The Chief Internal Auditor recommends that the Internal Audit progress 
report be noted. 

 
 

Background 
 

2. The role of the Council’s Internal Audit service is to enhance and protect 
organisational value by providing independent assurance, advice and insight into the 
Council's risk management, governance, and internal control processes.   
 
 

Audit and compliance 2021/22 Q1/Q2 deliverables and Q3/Q4 plan 
 

3. Progress as at the end of September 2021 is shown in Appendix 1, including 
planned audits for the remainder of the year. 

 
4. During the Covid-19 pandemic, school audits were undertaken remotely by a self-
assessment work programme which was completed by the school staff and then 
reviewed by Internal Audit with follow up questions and online meetings as required.  
The schools work programme has been revised now restrictions are being lifted with 
the aim of resuming on-site visits (where feasible and in line with current restrictions).  

 
5. The schools audit work programme now includes two initial questionnaires which 
will be sent to the Head Teacher and the Chair of Governors in advance of the full 
audit.  This will give the audit team information to address any immediate concerns.  

 
6. Progress against the non-school elements of the audit programme has been 

delayed by the volume of grant certifications.  We are continually reviewing the audit 

programme with service managers and are confident that we will be able to deliver 

sufficient assurance coverage in the remainder of the year. 

 
Audit actions update 
 

7.   Audit actions are tracked, and we make regular contact with operational 
manager to follow up progress.  For actions relating to limited assurance audits 
where a follow up audit is planned, actions are transferred to the new audit.  This 
applies to the following four audits which are listed in Appendix 2: 
 

 Capital and Business Case Development 

 Debt management 

Page 1



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 Long term agency and consultancy placements 

 Governor support and training - thematic review: For completeness this audit 
has been included in this quarter’s report. From 1 September, Liberata 
Schools Finance and HR were TUPE’d to Worcestershire Children’s First and 
will be reported as part of their audit plan update.  

 
 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
 

8. There have been 8 cases of fraud reported to the team in the last 6 months. 2 
cases resulted in special investigations with subsequent advisory reports, however 
no fraud was identified. A further 3 cases have received advice on strengthening 
their fraud controls. 3 cases remain open; these are to support HR and a referral to 
Action Fraud. The increasing engagement has encouraged wider team members to 
contact the team to seek fraud advice which will help to prevent cases in the future. 
 
9. The Council continues to engage with the National Fraud Initiative programme, 
providing key data sets to the Cabinet Office to enable matches to be identified and 
investigated.  The 2020/21 review is well underway, with all Blue Badge data 
reviewed with no issue. Over 70% of pensions queries have been completed, and 
significant progress has been made in developing key standards to assist in future 
reviews. 
 
10.  A significant increase in engagement with staff on fraud awareness has been 
undertaken via the online platform Yammer. Membership of the Fraud Awareness 
Group is up to 143, however information is visible to employees without membership 
and in some cases viewer numbers exceed 1,000. 
 
11.  The team is supporting the development of an online Midlands Fraud Group with 
a platform to share best practice, obtain advice and liaise on areas of reginal 
concern. 
   

 
Advisory services 
 

12.  In quarter two Internal Audit have not been informed or become aware of any 
areas within the Council that require our advisory services.  

 
 
Grant certifications 
 

13.  Our grant certification work supports the Council in ensuring that money claimed 
from government agencies is correctly accounted for and we work closely with 
operational teams to deliver this.  6 grants with a total value of £4.2m have been 
certified as accurate to date.  We are currently auditing 7 grants with an income 
value to the Council of £28.9m.  We continue to see increases in the number of 
grants which require certification and are working closely with service areas to 
ensure adequate planning and quality of evidence provision.  Details of certifications 
are given in Appendix 1. 

 
 
 

Page 2



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

Staffing 
 

14.  As part of the Financial Services Apprentice Placement Scheme the two 
apprentices that joined the Internal Audit team in April will be moving onto other 
Finance areas of the Council on 4 October and the team will be joined by two 
apprentices as part of the rotation programme.  
 
15.  We currently have a vacancy following the promotion of one of our Audit 
Business Partners to the role of Audit and Compliance Manager and are considering 
our recruitment options to enable the audit plan to be delivered.  

 
16.  The team continues working with the HR Organisational Development team on 
the team development training programme. This programme supports individual and 
team development and will continue for the remainder of the year. 

 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Jenni Morris, Chief internal Auditor 
Tel: Ext 4405 
Email: jmorris4@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: Ext 6268 
Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Supporting Information 
 
Appendix 1: Audit and grant certification report 
Appendix 2: Audit actions 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Internal Auditor) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 - Internal Audit update Appendix 1

Assurance Audits

Audit Rating Current Milestone

2020/21-35 - Bewdley School & Sixth Form Centre Not assessed Start Field Work

2020/21-50 - PY - Asset management - Property Not assessed Start Field Work

2020/21-81 - Transport services, external and internal management and reporting Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-07 - HR mileage and expenses Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-09 - St Egwin’s Middle School Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-20 - Chaddesley Corbett Endowed Primary School Not assessed Start Field Work

2020/21-31 - Adult Social Care_Working with People Not assessed Start Field Work

2020/21-77 - Rushwick CoE Primary Not assessed Terms of Reference agreed

2020/21-43 - Effective governance of the WCC / WCF arrangements and Contract Management Not assessed

2020/21-47 - General Ledger Maintenance - CP / e5 upgrades Not assessed

2020/21-76 - Rigby Hall Day Special Not assessed

2020/21-82 - Treasury management and the prudential code (revised) Not assessed

2020/21-95 - Value for Money Not assessed

2021/22-01 - Covid related procurement arrangements Not assessed

2021/22-02 - Democratic and Governance - Constitution review Not assessed

2021/22-03 - Digital strategy implementation Not assessed

2021/22-04 - Risk management Not assessed

2021/22-05 - Insourced services – advisory and assurance support Not assessed

2021/22-06 - Employee starter process Not assessed

2021/22-08 - Financial resilience Not assessed

2021/22-10 - Pensions investment review - LGPS pooling Not assessed

2021/22-11 - Comberton Primary School Not assessed

2021/22-13 - HR Performance Cycle Review Not assessed

2021/22-14 - Direct payments Not assessed

2021/22-15 - Debt management Not assessed

2021/22-16 - Pensions administration reviews Not assessed

2021/22-21 - Public Health (tbc) Not assessed

2021/22-22 - Registration Service - Marriage Schedule Scheme Not assessed

P
age 5



2021/22-23 - Provider fee reviews Not assessed

2021/22-24 - Archaeology Service - Field Section Not assessed

2021/22-25 - IT data use security Not assessed

2021/22-43 - Upton-upon-Severn CoE Primary School Not assessed

2021/22-48 - Bayton Primary School Not assessed

2021/22-49 - Franche Primary School Not assessed

2021/22-50 - Grove Primary School Not assessed

2021/22-51 - St George's CE Primary Not assessed

2021/22-52 - St Richard's CE First School Not assessed

2021/22-54 - Long term agency and consultancy placements Not assessed

2021/22-55 - Capital and Business Case Development Not assessed

2021/22-56 - Employee leaver process Not assessed

2021/22-57 - Pension Fund investment arrangements Not assessed

2021/22-63 - Procure to pay FIP Not assessed

2021/22-64 - Income to Debt FIP Not assessed

2021/22-65 - Penderels Direct Payments review Not assessed

2021/22-66 - Medium Term Financial Plan Not assessed

2021/22-67 - Scheme of delegation Not assessed

2021/22-68 - Business Continuity Plan Not assessed

2021/22-69 - Financial Regulations Not assessed

2021/22-70 - Procurement (process map) Not assessed

2021/22-71 - Contract review - high value / long term Not assessed

2021/22-72 - Contract register - supplier spend analysis Not assessed

2021/22-73 - Contract management process map Not assessed

P
age 6



Grant Certifications

Grant Status Current Milestone

2020/21-24 - Track and Trace Funding Grant Certified End Audit

2021/22-39 - Worcester Business Central Growth Hub Certified End Audit

2021/22-40 - Community Testing Fund Certified End Audit

2021/22-42 - Worcester Business Central Growth Hub Supplementary Certified End Audit

2021/22-45 - EU Transition Business Readiness Growth Hub Grant Certified End Audit

2021/22-53 - LA COVID19 Test & Trace Project Eagle Variant of Concern Surge Testing Grant Certified End Audit

2020/21-04 PY - COVID Bus Services Support Grant Not assessed Start Field Work

2020/21-26 PY - Transport to School (post COVID) Grant Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-26 - Bus Subsidy Ring Fenced Grant Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-27 - Local Transport Block Funding - Integrated Transport Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-28 - Local Transport Block Funding - Pot Hole Action Fund Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-37 - Covid19 Bus Services Support Grant Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-38 - Covid19 Tendered Bus Service Provision Not assessed Start Field Work

2021/22-17 - Pothole_Challenge Fund Grant Not assessed

2021/22-29 - Local Transport Block Funding - National Productivity Investment Fund Not assessed

2021/22-30 - Local Transport Block Funding - Flood Resilience Not assessed

2021/22-31 - Disability Facilities Grant Not assessed

2021/22-36 - Blue Badges Not assessed

2021/22-58 - BEIS Public Sector Decarbonisation Grant Not assessed

2021/22-59 - Major Project Grant: A4440 Worcester Southern Link Road Phase 4 Not assessed

2021/22-60 - Home to School & College Transport Not assessed

2021/22-61 - Broadband SEP Not assessed

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 - Internal Audit update Appendix2

Audit Actions

C
le

ar
e

d

N
o

t 
d

u
e

0
-3

 m
o

n
th

s 

la
te

3
-6

 m
o

n
th

s 

la
te

6
-1

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

la
te

>1
2

 m
o

n
th

s 

la
te

Substantial Assurance audits

Millfields First 3 2

St George's C of E Primary School 5 2 1

 Sytchampton Endowed Primary 10 1

Moderate Assurance audits

IT inventory 2 2

IT legacy systems 2 1

Ombersley Endowed First 10 1

Limited Assurance audits

Governor support and training - thematic review 2 4 1

North Bromsgrove High School 7 1 1

Capital and Business Case Development 6

Debt management 3

Long term agency and consultancy placements 5 2

Advisory audits

Financial management framework 14 1

60 15 5 3 5 1

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 6 
  

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
STATUTORY ACCOUNTS AND PENSION FUND 2020/21 – 
EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT  
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that Committee consider its 
response to the Grant Thornton Audit Findings Report for the 
Worcestershire County Council Statutory Accounts 2020/21 and 
Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund Accounts 2020/21. 

 

Background 
 

2.  In response to COVID-19, the requirement to prepare draft accounts by 31 May 
has been extended to 31 July and the requirement for the public inspection period 
has been amended to commence on or before the first working day of August 2021.  
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021 extend the statutory audit 
deadlines for 2020-21 and 2021-22 for all local authorities. 
 
3. Accordingly, a Progress Report prepared by the Council's external auditor, Grant 
Thornton, was provided to the last Committee in July 2021 on progress made and 
any issues arising from the external audit of the Council’s and Pension Fund's 
financial statements. 
 
4. Since then, the audit process has continued, and the Council has now received 
Audit Findings Reports for both audits and these are included as appendices for 
member review.  It is noted that we will again be one of the first County Councils to 
have produced and have audited accounts available for this year. 

 

Key issues arising - Worcestershire County Council Statutory Accounts 
2020/21 

 
5. The key issues are given in the draft of the Grant Thornton report and are 
summarised below: 
 

 Grant Thornton anticipates issuing an unqualified audit opinion, subject to any 
minor outstanding queries being resolved 
 

 The audit identified a number of misclassification and disclosure 

changes. All material changes have been adjusted 
 

 The audit did not identify any events or conditions which may cast significant 
doubt on the going concern assumption 
 

Page 11



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 There remain a small number of non-material changes which have not been 
adjusted in the accounts and these are recommended by Grant Thornton as 
future improvements which are accepted 

 
 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 845560 
Email:  mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Mark Sanders, Chief Accountant 
Tel 01905 846519 
Email:  mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

Supporting Information 
 

 Appendix 1: Grant Thornton Audit Findings Worcestershire County Council – To 
follow    

 Appendix 2: Grant Thornton Audit Findings Worcestershire County Council 
Pension Fund – To follow    
 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 
 

Page 12

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk


AGENDA ITEM 7  
  

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21 
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

1. The Chief Finance Officer recommends that the Annual Governance 
Statement 2020/21 be approved.  

 

Background 
 

2.  The Council is required, as part of its ongoing review of the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements, to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2020/21.  The AGS will form part of the Annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
3. The draft AGS was reported to the last Committee meeting on 29 July 2021 to be 
considered alongside the draft Statement of Accounts also presented at the time.  
Since then there have been no changes to the AGS and is therefore brought for 
formal comment and approval today. 

 
4. The AGS is primarily retrospective.  It reports on the assurance framework and 
measures in place for the financial year 2020/21 and takes into account any 
significant issues of governance up to the date of publication of the Statement of 
Accounts.  The AGS outlines the actions taken or proposed to address governance 
issues identified. 
 
5. The AGS is completed by the Corporate Risk Management Group based on 
information provided by senior officers.  The evidence comes from a variety of 
sources, including service / plans, relevant lead officers within the organisation, 
internal and external auditors and inspection agencies. 

 

Content 
 

6. The AGS demonstrates how the Council is meeting the principles of good 
governance in accordance with the CIPFA / SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government Framework.  These principles aim to ensure that the Council is: 
 

 Conducting our business in accordance with all relevant laws and regulations; 
 

 Safeguarding and properly accounting for public money; and  
 

 Using resources economically, efficiently and effectively to achieve agreed 
priorities which benefit local people. 

 

Page 13



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

7. As part of the review of the Council's effectiveness significant internal control 
issues affecting the Council are identified.  In accordance with CIPFA guidance, an 
issue is regarded as significant if: 
 

 The issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal 
objective; 
 

 The issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be 
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another 
aspect of the business; 
 

 The issue has led to a material impact on the accounts; 
 

 The Audit and Governance Committee has advised that it should be 
considered significant for this purpose; 
 

 The Chief Internal Auditor has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in 
the annual opinion on the internal control environment; 
 

 The issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has 
seriously damaged the reputation of the organisation; and 
 

 The issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial 
Officer and / or the Monitoring Officer. 

 
8. The AGS includes the following governance issues as areas for improvement.  
Items which were included in the 2019/20 AGS and remain governance issues 
following review in 2020/21 are: 
 

 Serious harm or death of a child or young person - specific priorities for 
continual development and implementation are included in the Worcestershire 
Children First Business Plan and detailed within Social Care and 
Safeguarding Business Plan focussing on Ofsted recommendations for areas 
of improvement; 

 

 Activity exceeds budget allocation – regular budget monitoring and a focus on 
demand / activity continues to strengthen and be a focus of our reporting and 
monitoring; and   

 

 Serious harm or death of a vulnerable adult – the Council will continue to 
monitor and manage through the Safeguarding Adults Board, supported by 
teams where staff are trained and benchmarked against the safeguarding 
competency framework. 

 
9. The following issues have been identified as part of the 2020/21 review process: 
 

 Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults – safeguarding risk because of 
the serious harm or death of a child or adult or failure to safeguard children or 
adults; 

 

Page 14



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 Ensuring the Council’s financial sustainability; setting a realistic and 
achievable medium-term budget and monitoring the ongoing impact of 
COVID-19 on budgeted income and expenditure; and 
 

 The Council’s response to and recovery from the impact of COVID-19 on 
residents and the local economy. 

 
10.  The governance of the Council will continue to be monitored by Cabinet, Audit 
and Governance Committee and other councillor committees, and the Council's 
Strategic and Wider Leadership Teams. 
 
11.  Grant Thornton, the Council's external auditors, have considered the AGS as 
part of their external audit, and have confirmed that it is consistent with their 
knowledge of our organisation and the financial statements. 
 

 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 845560 
Email:  mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Mark Sanders, Chief Accountant 
Tel 01905 846519 
Email: mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

Supporting Information 
 

 Appendix: Annual Governance Statement    
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report: 
 
 

Page 15

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 1 

 

  

 

Worcestershire County 

Council Annual Governance 

Statement 2020/21 

P
age 17



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 2 

 

Introduction 

The Annual Governance Statement is a review of our activities to 
ensure that the County Council is carrying out its functions 
effectively.  The review includes an update of governance issues 
previously identified, current issues and an evaluation of the future 
position of the County Council.   

Our risk management process is a key part of our governance 
arrangements and provides assurance that: 

• our business is conducted in accordance with all relevant 
laws and regulations; 

• public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; 
and 

• resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively 
to achieve agreed priorities which benefit local people. 

 

The governance framework 

This Annual Governance Statement is published in accordance with 
the CIPFA/SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework 2016. This comprises systems and 
processes for the direction and control of the County Council and 
the activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads 
the community.  It enables us to monitor the achievement of strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

The County Council is committed to improving governance through 
a process of continual evaluation and review, delivered through the 
seven principles of good governance as identified in the Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 and 
supported by processes which strengthen corporate governance 
such as the Corporate Risk Management Group. 

 

Our system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level and is based on an ongoing process to identify and 
manage risks to the achievement of policies, aims and objectives, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically.  It cannot eliminate all 
risk of failure but provides reasonable assurance of effectiveness.   

 

 

P
age 18



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 3 

 

Set out below are the activities carried out by the County Council 
which contribute to our delivery of the seven principles in the 
CIPFA/SoLACE Framework during 2020/21.  

Core Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating 

strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the 

rule of law 

We have arrangements in place to provide assurance that our 
values are upheld, and that members and officers demonstrate high 
standards of conduct and behaviour to comply with laws and 
regulations.   

These include: 

• Codes of conduct for officers and members;  

• The inclusion of ethical values in policies and procedures for 
all areas; 

• A complaints procedure ensuring appropriate investigation 
and response 

• A Whistleblowing Policy which enables employees and 

others who have serious concerns about any aspect of the 

Council’s work to come forward and voice those concerns; 

• A commitment to equality of opportunity for all citizens, in line 
with the Public Sector Duty as set out in the Equality Act 
2010; and 

• Our Constitution, which sets out the conditions to ensure that 
all officers, key post holders and members can fulfil their 
responsibilities in accordance with legislative requirements.  
Roles, responsibilities and delegated authority for individual 
Members, the Council, Cabinet and senior officers are 
documented.   

 

Core Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement 

The Chief Executive, Chief Officer Group and Strategic Leadership 
Team value and are committed to acting on staff feedback.  The 

County Council has an annual staff survey, frequent pulse surveys 
and staff briefings.  Staff are involved in issue resolution 
arrangements.  

In 2020/21, the 2020 Worcestershire County Council Viewpoint 
Survey enabled Councillors and Officers to engage with members 
of the local community to receive feedback and monitor public 
perception in relation to local priorities, satisfaction with Council 
services and level of engagement. 

Feedback from events and surveys help to inform the Council's four 
corporate priorities: supporting Children and families, promoting 
Health and Well Being, protecting the Environment and championing 
Open for Business.   

We are registered as a Controller under the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) which governs how we manage and process the 
information we collect and retain.  We have a nominated Data 
Protection Officer and procedures in place that explain how we use 
and share information, as well as arrangements for members of the 
public to access information.  We have also adopted the model 
publication scheme produced by the Information Commissioner's 
Office. 

Core Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and environmental benefits 

Our Corporate Plan, Shaping Worcestershire’s Future 2017-22, 
identifies four key priorities that help us shape the future vision for 
Worcestershire and focus the delivery of our services. 

P
age 19



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 4 

 

 

 

Open for Business – we have a significant 
programme of improvements in workforce skills, 
employment, infrastructure and productivity.  We 
are aiming to become a financially self-sufficient 
Council and to achieve this aim we are promoting 
and supporting businesses in the County and 

those looking to relocate here. 

 

Children and Families – we have a strong 
focus on improving outcomes for the children, 
young people and families of Worcestershire.  
We support schools with achieving a good or 
outstanding rating by Ofsted and facilitating 
young people achieving five or more good 
GCSE's, and support young people moving 

successfully into employment.  These services are delivered in 
conjunction with our wholly owned company, Worcestershire 
Children First.  

The Environment - Worcestershire's 
environment is one of our key features and 
contributes to enhancing the quality of life for 
residents and visitors.  We are committed to 
improving our infrastructure networks, including 
transport and digital technology to support 

business and encourage investment.  We also have a key focus on 
minimising waste which goes to landfill. 

 

Health and Wellbeing – we are working with 
local partners to support our residents to be 
healthier, live longer, have better quality of life 
and remain independent for as long as possible.  
Our focus on adult social care aims to keep 
people with support and care needs as 

independent as possible by providing choice in how to live their lives. 

 
All services have plans in place in line with approved budgets to 
deliver the key outcomes contained in the Corporate Plan.  
Management of these plans varies by service, but includes key 
performance indicators, ongoing outcome monitoring and reports to 
management teams and committees as appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Children & 
Families

Health & 
Wellbeing

Open for 
Business

The 
Environment

 

 

 

 

P
age 20



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 5 

 

Core Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary 

to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 

 

The County Council's planning process works to support and 
optimise delivery and identify and mitigate any risks. 
 
Each key area of focus identifies several aims and targets and 
responsibility for achieving these lies with individual directorates, 
and relevant aims and targets are included in individual service 
delivery plans.  Risks and issues are managed by the Risk and 
Assurance Manager, supported by the Corporate Risk Management 
Group.  The process has been at a high level during 2020/21 as the 
focus was on the COVID-19 emergency response process with non-
COVID-19 risks managed at service level.  The Risk and Assurance 
Manager has retained close contact with the Corporate Risk 
Management Group during this time and reporting has continued to 
the Audit and Governance Committee and Covid Silver Command. 

Progress against the Corporate Plan is monitored and reported to 
councillors on a regular basis.  

Core Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including 

the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

To deliver our objectives, we rely on our staff to carry on the great 
work they already do daily which is underpinned by Our People 
Values: 

• Customer Focus - putting the customer at the heart of 
everything we do 

• 'Can do' Culture – being proactive to achieve excellence 

• Freedom within Boundaries – courage to make constructive 
change 

 

We aim to drive change, develop talent and optimise potential and 
enable managers and leaders to develop and motivate our 
workforce to allow it to be future fit.  Reviewing the talent and 
potential of our workforce enables us to better understand and 
identify the potential we can develop over the coming years. 

Our annual performance review scheme forms a central part of our 
planning process.  Discussions and review sessions take place 
between every member of staff and their line manager to agree and 
track personal objectives and actions, with formal mid-year reviews 
as a key part of the process.  98% of staff received mid-year reviews 
during 2020/21.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning 
Process

Corporate 
aims and 
objectives

Service 
policies and 

priorities

Individual 
responsibilities

P
age 21



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 6 

 

Core Principle F: Managing risks and performance through 

robust internal control and strong public financial 

management 

Risk management is about the identification, analysis and control of 
threats or events that adversely affect the achievement of the 
County Council's strategic and operational objectives.  It also 
enables positive risks to be taken to innovate and improve service 
provision.  The Risk Management Strategy details the methodology 
for evaluating corporate risk management arrangements and its 
delivery is enabled by the Corporate Risk Management Group.  A 
specific risk framework was put in place to manage the risks 
identified as a result of the COVID-19 crisis, with the County 
Council’s Corporate Emergency Response Framework activated as 
part of our response.   

The County Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy embeds 
effective standards in countering fraud, corruption and theft.  The 
Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring this Strategy is 
applied and that the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk 
of Fraud and Corruption is followed.  The County Council supports 
and submits data for the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and assesses 
all matches for review and, where appropriate, mitigation.   

Financial Regulations form part of the Constitution and set out our 
financial management framework for ensuring we make the best use 
of the money we have available to spend.  It outlines the financial 
roles and responsibilities for staff and Members and provides a 
framework for financial decision-making. Where there are specific 
statutory powers and duties the Financial Regulations seek to 
ensure these are duly complied with, as well as reflecting best 
professional practice and decision-making.   

 

 

Core Principle G: Implementing good practices in 

transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 

accountability 

We endeavour to always be open and transparent through our 
officer and member activity.  A large amount of information is 
available on the County Council website which gives details of the 
working of the organisation, what we spend, and how our decisions 
are made.  
 
The Forward Plan provides information about the matters on which 
the County Council will make decisions.  Formal agenda, reports and 
minutes for all committee meetings are published on our website 
which ensures that people know what decisions the County Council 
is planning to take, and the decisions taken.   
 
Our Monitoring Officer has a specific duty to ensure the County 
Council, its officers and elected councillors maintain the highest 
standards in all they do.  A new Monitoring Officer was appointed in 
June 2020 to continue to ensure the highest standards of conduct 
are upheld. 
 
Arrangements are in place to ensure that we fully comply with the 
requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
and CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit.   

P
age 22



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 7 

 

 

Assessment of effectiveness of governance arrangements 

The governance framework described above has been in place throughout 2020/21 and maintained to the date of the approval of the Statement 

of Accounts.  Key governance arrangements during 2020/21 comprised the following: 

 

Audit & Governance Committee The Audit & Governance Committee oversees the audit and corporate governance arrangements of 

the County Council including annual audit plans and reports of internal and external auditors, the 

County Council’s system of internal control, risk management and prevention and detection of fraud 

and corruption. 

Chief Officer Group The Chief Officer Group has responsibility for overseeing the implementation of cross organisational 

strategy and the development and implementation of operational plans, policies, procedures and 

budgets prior to Senior Leadership Team and Committee approval.  The Group promotes robust, fit 

for purpose governance across the County Council. 

Strategic Leadership Team The County Council’s Strategic Leadership Team is responsible for ensuring that effective governance 

arrangements are in place and are subject to regular review.  The Team provide leadership, determine 

policy and uphold expected standards of behaviour.  

Overview & Scrutiny Performance 

Board 

The Board’s main responsibilities include commissioning work for scrutiny panels and establishing 

scrutiny task groups to ensure that significant issues are subject to appropriate review and scrutiny. 

Standard & Ethics Committee The Committee ensures that high standards of conduct are maintained by County Councillors and co-

opted member by reference to the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

Monitoring Officer The Monitoring Officer is responsible for maintaining the register of Councillors’ interests and deals 

with complaints of Member breaches of the County Council’s Code of Conduct.   The Monitoring 

Officer has a statutory duty to report breaches of the County Council’s legal obligations and findings 

of maladministration.   

P
age 23



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 8 

 

Chief Finance Officer The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the oversight and delivery of financial management 

arrangements; achieved through a robust financial control framework, financial regulations, standing 

orders, a scheme of delegation and an independent and objective Internal Audit function. 

Risk Management  The Corporate Risk Management Group is responsible for maintaining the Corporate Risk Register 

and monitoring identified risks, controls and mitigating actions.  Directorate Leadership Teams monitor 

and review Directorate Risk Registers and allocate resources to ensure risks management 

arrangements are effective.  

Specific risk management procedures are in place in response to the COVID-19 emergency response, 

led by the Risk and Assurance Manager and reporting to Silver Command on a regular basis. 

P
age 24



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 9 

 

Audit and Audit Assurances 

The Council’s Statement of Accounts are audited by Grant Thornton 

UK LLP.  In accordance with statutory requirements, the annual 

audit includes an examination and certification of the financial 

statements to confirm they are ‘true and fair’ and an assessment of 

the County Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources.  In 2019/20, Grant 

Thornton gave an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 

statements. 

Internal audit services are provided by the County Council’s in-

house team.  The team’s role is to enhance and protect the County 

Council’s value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 

advice and insight.  It is responsible for reviewing the adequacy of 

internal controls across all areas of the County Council and its 

services are managed and delivered in accordance with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

The work of the Internal Audit team is supported by external 

providers for specialist reviews such as technical audits of IT 

systems.  Further assurance is provided by reviews undertaken by 

external agencies including OFSTED, the Care Quality 

Commission, the Office of the Information Commissioner and other 

Local Authority Inspectorates. 

The Audit & Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit 

Charter and Audit Plan which outline the role of Internal Audit, its 

responsibilities and independence and the planned programme of 

audit work. 

The work of Internal Audit has been impacted by the Council’s 

response to the COVID-19 pandemic and also significant staff 

changes.  A flexible plan has enabled work to be focused on key 

risks and the Chief Internal Auditor has maintained close links with 

the leadership of the Council to ensure that adequate assurance 

and organisational coverage is delivered.  Based on the results of 

assurance and advisory work undertaken during the year, the Chief 

Internal Auditor’s annual opinion is that the control environment 

provides moderate assurance that the significant risks facing the 

County Council are addressed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 25



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 10 

 

Significant Governance Considerations 

 

 

  

Recurrent Considerations / Brought Forward from 2019/20  Update on Progress 

Serious harm or death of a child or young person  
Safeguarding risk because of serious harm or death of a child 
or failure to safeguard children. Reputational risk as a result of 
poor inspection or service breakdown.  

Safeguarding issues have been monitored and managed through the WCF 
Performance Board and through partnership working with the Worcestershire 
Safeguarding Children Partnership (WSCP) and other local strategic partners. 
Quality Assurance measures are in place safeguarding and activity has been 
monitored by the WSCP Safeguarding Practice Review Board and Get Safe 
Partnership Board. 

Activity exceeds budget allocation  
Inadequate budgets and / or ineffective financial management 
will impact on the County Council’s ability to effectively provide 
services and impair our ability to forward plan. The level of 
earmarked and general reserves could also be impacted by 
any unplanned draw down.  

Regular budget monitoring and forecasting remain a focus of our financial 
management processes.  Management accounts, which report actual income 
and expenditure against budgeted and forecast performance, have been 
prepared on a monthly basis and the achievement of savings targets and use of 
Council reserves has been monitored throughout the year as part of ongoing 
activity to consider financial sustainability and inform our assessment of going 
concern.  

Serious harm or death of a vulnerable adult  
A safeguarding risk because of serious harm / death from 
failure to safeguard a vulnerable adult. We also face 
reputational risk as a result of service breakdown.  

A Safeguarding Adult Board is in place with representation from safeguarding 
partners. A centralised Adult Safeguarding Team located within the 
Safeguarding Hub ensures competency of staff, information sharing and 
consistency in decision making. The Adult Safeguarding Team are aligned with 
the Area Teams and 3 Conversations processes. Staff are assessed against 
WSAB safeguarding competency framework. 

 

P
age 26



Worcestershire County Council – Statement of Accounts 2020/21 Page 11 

 

 

Issues identified for 2021/22 

A number of the issues and corresponding action plans noted 

above will continue to be the key focus for the County Council’s 

leadership in 2021/22: 

• Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults; 

• Ensuring a financially sustainable medium-term budget, 

including monitoring the ongoing financial impact of COVID-

19 on budgeted income and expenditure; and 

• Consideration of the response to and recovery from the impact 

of COVID-19 on residents and the local economy, including 

any legacy impact on care provision. 

 

 

Certification 

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined 
above have been effective.  We propose over the coming year to take 
steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance 
arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address the need 
for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and 
will monitor their implementation and operation during the year and as 
part of our next annual review and through the County Council's 
Corporate Risk Management Group.   

Paul Robinson  

Chief Executive 

Date: 24 September 2021 

Simon Geraghty 

Leader of the County Council 

Date: 24 September 2021

2020/21 New Governance Considerations Identified Actions 

COVID-19 The Council’s focus in 2020/21 was on its response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
implementing revised governance arrangements and working with strategic 
partners to deliver an emergency response to safeguard the residents of 
Worcestershire.   

Activation of the Corporate Emergency Response Framework and the 

Worcestershire COVID-19 Economic Response, Recovery and Resilience 

Group (WERRG) enabled wider engagement and alignment of objectives across 

local partner organisations. The impact of increased expenditure and lost income 

directly attributable to the Council’s response to COVID-19 was monitored as 

part of routine financial monitoring activity and reported to Central Government 

in line with deadlines throughout the year. P
age 27



 Page 12 

 

 

Page 28



AGENDA ITEM 8 
   

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
ANNUAL STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
 

 

Recommendation 
 

1.   The Chief Financial Officer recommends that: 
 

a) The Final Accounts Pack, including the Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2021, be approved; and 

 
b) He be authorised to sign the Letters of Representation on behalf of the 

County Council. 
 

Background 
 

2.  The Council and Pension Fund are required to prepare annual Statement of 
Accounts and to arrange for them to be audited and reported in accordance with the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and the 2020/21 Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, issued by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The Statement of Accounts presents the 
overall financial position of the Council and the Pension Fund, reflecting the Council's 
outturn position and the Pension Fund net asset position. 
 
3. This report sets out the key issues arising from the external audit of the Statutory 
Accounts and the process for their publication.  The external audit was carried out by 
the Council's External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, who has provided audit 
reports for the County Council and Pension Fund accounts.  Grant Thornton are 
required to report on any amendments from the draft Statement of Accounts as part 
of the submission of the final version to the Audit and Governance Committee.  The 
full report arising from this audit is included in the ISA 260 report to those charged 
with governance, which is included in the committee papers, and should be read in 
conjunction with this document. 
 

Key issues arising 
 

4. In response COVID-19 the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 have been 
amended to allow the publication of the statement of accounts and public inspection 
of the accounts to be delayed. 
 
5. Notwithstanding this, the Council has completed the 2020/21 draft accounts 
according to its planned timetable and has continued to enhance its supporting 
evidence and working papers, particularly in areas where professional judgement 
has been applied. 

 

Page 29



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

6. The Council has worked with Grant Thornton throughout with the majority of audit 
fieldwork completed remotely by the External Audit Team with minimal on-site 
presence. 

 
7. Draft unaudited accounts were presented to the last Committee meeting in July 
2021, and if approved today will be within statutory deadlines. 

 
Table 1:  Accounts Process 
 

Area Council Plan Statutory Deadline 

Publication of Draft 
Accounts 

30 July 2021 31 July 2021 

Public Inspection Period 1 August 2020 to 13 
September 2021 

Commence on or before 1 
August 2021  

Publication of Audited 
Accounts 

24 September 2021 30 September 2021 

 
8. The Council provided draft accounts to Grant Thornton on 21 June 2021.  These 
draft accounts and the draft Annual Governance Statement were also reported to 
Cabinet at its meeting on 24 June 2021. 
   
9. The financial position reported in the Council's Statutory Accounts for 2020/21 
was an underspend of £0.8 million against the net budget of £346.3 million, with an 
accounting surplus taking into account pension actuarial costs, capital costs and 
other financial adjustments, of £28.9 million.  The County Council's General Fund 
reserve balance has increased by £0.8 million to £13.0 million and there has been an 
increase of £25.3 million on available earmarked reserves taking their balance at 31 
March 2021 to £96.9 million. Additionally, School reserves of £4.0 million and £13.8 
million of Private Finance Initiative (PFI) reserves are retained. 

 
Table 2:  Reserves 
 

  

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2020 

Transfers 
out 

Transfers   
in 

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2021 

  £m £m £m £m 
Directorate Reserves 28.1 -4.0 23.8 47.9 

Grant Reserves 10.9 -0.2 6.6 17.3 
Corporate Funding/Insurance 32.6 -27.1 26.2 31.7 

Schools Reserves 1.4 -1.4 4.0 4.0 
Dedicated School Grant -6.2 0.0 6.2 0.0 

PFI Reserves 9.5 -0.5 4.8 13.8 

Total 76.3 -33.2 71.6 114.7 

 
 

10.  The cumulative DSG deficit brought forward from last financial year was £6.2 
million which will now be increased by £0.3 million deficit from 2020/21 and the deficit 
to carry forward into 2021/22 is now £6.5 million.  In line with the School and Early 
years Finance (England) Regulations 2020, the DSG earmarked reserve was 
reclassified as an unusable reserve from 1 April 2020 and therefore now excluded 

Page 30



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

from the above table. 
 
11.  Consideration of the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Council and Pension 
Fund’s assets has been made to ensure the accounts reflect any possible over or 
understatement of assets.  This is a matter of professional judgement and guidance 
from RICS, in respect of property valuations, and the Pension Fund Actuary has 
been considered.  There has not been a material impact on any asset category nor 
evidence since the valuation date that needs to be taken into account. 

 
12.  We appointed external valuers Wilks Head & Eve to perform the Land & Building 
asset valuations in 2020/21 in line with our rolling programme.  Valuations were 
completed as per the planned timetable and revaluations have been processed to 
update carrying values at 31 March 2021 and are reflected in the 2020/21 draft 
accounts. 
 
13.  The value of the Pension Fund’s net assets increased by £719.4 million from 
£2,645.4 million at 31 March 2020 to £3,364.8 million at 31 March 2021. During the 
year a surplus resulted on the Pension Fund accounts totalling £116.6 million, an 
increase of £107.4 million from a surplus of £9.2 million in the previous year.  

 
14.  The external audit has identified a number of presentation/classification 
adjustments and where appropriate these have been reflected in the accounts.   

 
15. The Value for Money fieldwork to inform the audit opinion will continue over the 
period to December 2021 and members will be updated on audit progress at the 3 
December 2021 committee meeting.     

 
 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 845560 
Email:  mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
Mark Sanders, Chief Accountant 
Tel 01905 846519 
Email:  mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Supporting Information 
 

 Appendix: Annual Financial Report and Statement of Accounts – To follow   
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 31

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 9 
  

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 

 

Recommendations 
 

1. The Chief Internal Auditor recommends that the Risk Management report be 
noted. 

 
 

Background 
 

2. Risk management is an essential part of delivering good governance and 
supports the Council’s strategic ambitions.  Effective and efficient risk governance 
and oversight provide assurance that the Council’s business activities are enhanced 
by opportunities, and not adversely impacted by threats that could have been 
foreseen. 
 
 

Risk Management 
 

3. The revised risk approach has categorised risk across 10 key themes with 
associated objectives. To enable more strategic reporting, a risk profile has been 
created for each objective which is evidenced by directorate risks (see Appendix 1). 
 
4. The next stage in the risk management process is for the individual Corporate 
Risk Management Group (CRMG) representatives to work with service areas to 
develop their risk registers in the same consistent format.  We will also consider 
external and partner risks at an organisational level to challenge and improve our 
internal governance and controls. 
 
5. The first phase of the new risk management software is now operational, and all 
data has been transferred over from the original system to produce a thematic 
Corporate Risk Register. 
 
6. The new risk process will form a key part of the Internal Audit development as we 
will consider risks when creating the audit programme and individual terms of 
reference.  We will also ensure that risks identified during an audit are fed back into 
the directorate leads for evaluation and the relevant leadership team and this 
Committee are engaged in the wider risk process. 
 

 
Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) 
 

7. As the risk process is improving the group is starting to expand with the addition 
of operational leads for Health & Safety, IT, Public Health, Highways and Transport 
to support the development of consistent evidence-based risk registers. 

Page 33



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 
8. A number of workshops and development sessions are in place to support teams 
in developing their registers which will then allow the CRMG reps to focus on 
emerging risks and wider horizon scanning. 

 
 
Risk Position Update 

9. At the end of August 2021, the Corporate Risk Register contained 253 individual 
risks of which only 3 were identified as high risk for the Council (see Appendix 2). 
The new approach breaks down previous risks into smaller areas which will increase 
the overall number of risks but provide us with greater clarity as to why a risk is so 
high.  In addition, each of the 4 directorates plus Worcestershire Children First were 
asked to rate against 2 risks for each objective to enable us to review specific areas. 
 
10. The majority of risks associated with the Covid-19 pandemic have now returned 
to a business-as-usual approach, however those still needing a coordinated 
approach with district councils and other partners are still presented to Silver 
Command. The risks associated with lateral flow kits and vaccines for carers are 
being closely monitored. At the same point there were 6 risks on the Covid Risk 
Register of which 1 was high (see Appendix 3). 

 
 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Jenni Morris, Chief internal Auditor Tel:  
Ext 4405 
Email: jmorris4@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer Tel:  
Ext 6268 
Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Supporting Information 
 
Appendix 1 – Risk profile 
Appendix 2 – Risk reporting 
Appendix 3 – Covid risk reporting 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Internal Auditor) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 34



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 – Risk Management Report                       Appendix 1 

 

Page 1 
 

Risk Profiles 

The top-level risk reporting is currently based on an average profile for each objective 

where the position of each directorate is highlighted on a heat map (below).  

(P-PEOPLE, W-WCF, X-CEU, C-COACH, E-E&I) 

1 Workforce We will achieve our workforce obligations 
by having the right people, with the 
relevant level of competency, skill, or 
qualification, in the right roles. 

 

2 Health, 
Safety, 
Welfare & 
Environment 

We will protect the health, safety, welfare 
and environment of our workforce and 
others affected by Council activities 

 

3 IT & Digital We will provide the appropriate IT 
systems, security, and support to fulfil our 
business needs 

 

4 Financial We will maintain the on-going financial 
viability of the council. 

 

5 Performance We will deliver our services in line with 
the relevant Service Plans and objectives 

 

Page 35



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 – Risk Management Report                       Appendix 1 

 

Page 2 
 

6 Reputational We will promote a positive public image in 
all matters relating to the council its 
officers & members 

 

7 Compliance We will uphold all of our regulatory and 
statutory requirements 

  

8 Information 
Governance 

We will ensure the effective, efficient, and 
compliant use of data 

 

9 Supplies / 
Suppliers 

We will commit to achieving the best 
outcome through the appropriate use of 
supply and suppliers 

 

10 Facilities / 
Equipment 

We will fulfil our obligations through the 
provision of the appropriate buildings, 
facilities & equipment 

 

 

Note: 

The second tier of reporting will be these 10 objectives on an individual directorate level which 

will then be evidenced from team/service level risk registers. This will ensure consistent and 

clear data which can be understood across the organisation. 

Page 36



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 – Risk Management Report                       Appendix 2 

 

Page 1 
 

Risk Reporting 

The top-level risk reporting is based on an average profile which will not identify individual cases 

allowing for wider dissemination of reporting. Those risks of particular significance including but 

not limited to very high or red risks will be specifically highlighted. 

Individual directorate risks will be reported monthly in a similar way to ensure consistent and 

evidence-based reporting.  

Current High Risks (as at 31 August 2021) 

 

Risk information 

 E6.2a – Economy & Infrastructure (E) 

   Objective 6 – Reputational 

    2a Council Services 

 Details: Failure to maintain commercial bus operations across Worcestershire 

 P5.2e – People (P) 

   Objective 5 – Performance 

    2e Failure to meet deadlines 

 Details: 

 X9.1e – Chief Executives Unit (X) 

   Objective 9 – Supply / Suppliers 

    1e Ineffective contract management (performance) 

Details: Deterioration in partnership relationships where there is a dependency on 

technology systems (privity of contracts) 

 

 E4.1a – Economy & Infrastructure (E) 

   Objective 4 – Financial 

    1a Failure to manage financial resources (Overspend) 

Details: Budget overspend/underspend, including failure to deliver financial savings 

identified in the MTFP - DE&I (amalgamation of risks 175 and 189) 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Governance Committee 24 September 2021 – Risk Management Report                       Appendix 3 

 

Page 1 
 

Covid Risk Reporting 

A combined risk register is currently maintained on SharePoint where those risks of particular 

significance are reported to Silver on a weekly basis. 

Current Red Risks (as at 31 August 2021) 

Risk Area: Local Outbreak Response Team (LORT) 

Risk Owner: Andrew Spice / Andy Moran 

Risk Rating: 20 (Impact 5 / Likelihood 4) 

Details: There is a risk that WCC will run out of LFT kits due to DHSC strategy on 

replenishment, jeopardising ability for Target Community Testing to commence as 

planned. Orders have been placed for numbers as planned/forecasted currently 

mitigating by delaying the roll out at some collection points.  

 

Emerging Risk 

Risk Area: Adult Social Care (ASC) 

Risk Owner: Rebecca Wassell / Julie Chesterman 

Risk Rating: 16 (Impact 4 / Likelihood 4) 

Details: Due to the new legislation making it mandatory for all staff working in CQC 

registered care homes that provider personal and/or nursing care - there is a risk that 

care homes could lose staff and have issues retaining CQC minimum staffing levels. 

Regular monitoring in place. (Update - 98% of Worcestershire’s care home staff 

have now received first vaccine). 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 10 
  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
INCOME AND DEBT MANAGEMENT  
 

 

Recommendation 
 
1. The Chief Finance Officer recommends that the Income and Debt 

Management report be noted.  

Progress on Income Management 
 
2. The Committee continues to receive regular updates on the Council’s approach to 
managing short term debt and the redesign of the organisation’s income management 
processes. This report updates the Committee on progress with this change programme. 

3. Since the last Committee meeting in July 2021, the central Debt Team has continued to 
pursue recovery or removal of debts. In the six months since March 2021, the Debt Team 
have elicited the recovery of £7.3 million of debt, of which £6.4 million (88%) was repaid, 
£432k (6%) was cancelled and £457k (6%) was written-off. While this is an extremely 
positive start, much work remains with over £13.2m debts remaining. 

4. Service transformation activities have continued with the roll-out of process review 
workshops which have identified a number of service enhancements. Specifically, we are 
keen to explore the expansion of data digitisation to remove manual processes and improve 
the synchronisation of the Finance and Adult Care systems.  

5. To improve awareness of debt throughout the organisation and in response to feedback 
on the enhanced overview reporting provided, we have identified a need for more Directorate 
specific debt reports to be generated. We are currently exploring how such data can best be 
made available. 

6. An Income Strategy and Debt policy have been drafted and these will be presented to 
this committee’s December 2021 meeting for comment and endorsement. They will also be 
incorporated into the wider Financial Regulations review scheduled to conclude early next 
year. 

7. Members will recall the Council increased bad debt provision by £2.8 million last financial 
year mainly as a result of the potential financial impact on collection rates from the COVID-19 
pandemic. Officers will continue to monitor this alongside legal colleagues in the chasing of 
debt, and at this stage we are not adjusting the provision further. 

8. Following the transfer from Place Partnership, commercial rent billing is now undertaken 
by the team. 

9. Over the next quarter we plan we review and further extend the use of legal process to 
recover debts.  This activity will be led by the organisation’s legal team. 

Page 41



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Latest position on debts 

10. The following Table 1 shows the latest level of short-term debt stands at £3.9 million, of 
which was the majority was raised this financial year.  This has fallen significantly in the last 
month mainly related to debt chasing and management of old debts, including write off 
provisions.  Collection continues to be prioritised for larger amounts, but work is progressing 
to address older debts.   

Table 1 – Summary of aged debt by month 

 

11. The total debt recorded greater than 30 days old, for which there is not an instalment or 
pending cancellation is £13.2 million (64%). This is slightly higher than for the past two months 
due mainly to the high value of debts raised in July, however the underlying trend is for a 
downward trajectory and is £3.6m lower than for August 2020. 

 

12. The current debt outstanding can be further categorised for each Directorate as follows: 

Month
Total Debt 

outstanding (£)
of which <30 days (£)

Of which paid by 

instalments (£)

total debt outstanding less 

<30 days and less 

instalments (£)

31.08.21 20,817,184.18 3,944,920.38 3,708,268.03 13,163,995.77

31.07.21 23,486,697.21 8,399,000.72 2,482,299.89 12,605,396.60

30.06.21 19,242,558.06 3,372,404.73 2,760,298.67 13,109,854.66

31.05.21 22,151,251.74 4,716,709.91 3,078,478.76 14,356,063.07

30.04.21 26,564,205.60 9,660,860.35 3,335,474.90 13,567,870.35

31.03.21 24,451,398.69 10,325,806.26 843,483.09 13,282,109.34

28.02.21 21,729,634.60 5,198,779.52 1,412,190.41 15,118,664.67

31.01.21 24,709,472.93 7,124,236.38 1,857,335.26 15,727,901.29

31.12.20 23,270,710.68 7,085,169.24 2,399,486.84 13,786,054.60

30.11.20 27,299,577.24 4,855,215.72 2,902,851.92 19,541,509.60

31.10.20 30,229,005.90 9,776,457.50 2,541,268.23 17,911,280.17

30.09.20 25,034,759.58 7,018,715.26 1,852,529.07 16,163,515.25

0.00
5.00

10.00
15.00
20.00
25.00
30.00
35.00

M
il

li
o

n
s

Overall Debt Rolling 12 Months

Total Debt <30 days (£) Instalments Debt in Progress

Page 42



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Table 2: Aged Debt Analysis - by Directorate 

                         

13. Debts recorded as Finance as above relate to where finance staff have raised debts on 
behalf of a service directorate. 

14. The top 20 debtors, anonymised, are as follows: 

Table 5: To 20 Debtors – Anonymised 

 

 

Directorate Up To 30 Days Installment 31 to 120 Days 121 to 365 Days >365 Days Grand Total

Chief Executive 14,021.60       49,256.94        1,431.61            25,348.74      90,058.89         

Coach Directorate 179,196.60     37,314.32      366,822.45     99,483.85          104,663.46    787,480.68       

Economy & Infrastructure 325,411.13     17,645.06      201,904.63     184,418.36        430,296.01    1,159,675.19   

Finance 1,514.84         1,436,879.88 861.18             1,556.12            22,689.04      1,463,501.06   

Income received but not yet allocated to individual Debtors 134,048.02-     311,680.13-     448,205.31-        429,347.85-    1,323,281.31-   

Other Organisations 12,450.00       64,485.50      76,935.50         

Pensions 194,191.18     1,891,630.04 129,692.87     401,685.68        45,070.87      2,662,270.64   

WCF 38,330.26       79,649.59        16,739.71          35,423.06      170,142.62       

Whole Council costs 252,497.35     21,456.33      1.00                 13,721.41          5,651.24         293,327.33       

People - Adults 2,520,038.31 272,025.82    1,751,921.15  2,755,137.19    4,051,682.87 11,350,805.34 

People - Schools 256,476.06     24,549.88      606,880.19     176,194.07        1,103,391.93 2,167,492.13   

People - Communities 284,622.31     6,766.70         571,489.65     52,008.25          978,082.66    1,892,969.57   

People - Public Health 218.76            937.50             23,225.54      24,381.80         

Trusts 1,424.74         1,424.74           

Grand Total 3,944,920.38 3,708,268.03 3,447,737.02  3,254,170.94    6,462,087.81 20,817,184.18 

NAME Up To 30 Days 31 to 120 Days 121 to 365 Days >365 Days Grand Total

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE 15,936.00 834,883.00 850,819.00

UTILITIES 84,220.50 119,946.50 95,799.87 77,032.72 376,999.59

HEALTH 334,558.52 334,558.52

LOCAL AUTHORITY 44,034.37 66,473.19 141,154.44 251,662.00

TRANSPORT COMPANY 240,860.00 4,432.50 245,292.50

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE -489.60 195,867.88 22,559.32 217,937.60

LOCAL AUTHORITY 195,256.00 1,250.61 3,571.00 337.00 200,414.61

INDIVIDUAL 195,412.57 195,412.57

INDIVIDUAL 191,582.50 191,582.50

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE 542.70 172,972.67 173,515.37

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE 164,266.06 164,266.06

HEALTH 147,869.84 147,869.84

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 828.00 145,653.83 146,481.83

INDIVIDUAL 119,057.43 119,057.43

INDIVIDUAL 111,582.80 111,582.80

LOCAL AUTHORITY 104,875.75 4,178.69 109,054.44

INDIVIDUAL 32,645.42 62,497.04 95,142.46

INDIVIDUAL 4,947.96 81,184.60 86,132.56

INDIVIDUAL 73,066.92 12,332.98 85,399.90

LOCAL AUTHORITY 82,965.87 82,965.87

Page 43



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

15. Senior council officers continue to work with the education sector, Council and NHS 
debtors to obtain payment. 

16. There are seven debts annotated as for an individual – these are more sensitive as they 
relate to social care service clients / cases. Six of these cases are currently being pursued by 
the organisation’s legal team and one is awaiting probate. 

17. In addition to the general debt noted above the Council has a Longer-Term Debt that it 
recognises of c.£1 million relating to social care accrued accommodation costs.  This debt is 
secured against property assets pending sufficient house value. This is regularly reviewed, 
and charges secured against properties. 

Legal, Financial and HR Implications 

18. There is a risk that without this work there will be further calls to increase the Council’s 
bad debt provisions which will draw from current resources. In assessing the ability to chase 
the levels of capacity within Legal, Finance and HR will need to be considered. At this stage 
these are all risks that we are still seeking to mitigate and further updates will be brought 
back to this Committee. 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 

Michael Hudson, Chief Finance Officer, 01905 845560, mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 

Mark Sanders, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Finance), 01905 846519, 
mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Finance Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 44

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk


AGENDA ITEM 11 
  

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
TRAINING PROGRAMME  
 

 
 

Recommendations 
 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that: 
 

a) The Training Programme as set out in paragraph 6 be approved; and 
 

b) Members of the Committee complete the appended knowledge survey to 
inform longer term training plans for the Committee. 

 

Background 
 
2. At the last Committee meeting, it was agreed that a report be brought to the next 
meeting setting out a training programme for the life of this Council up to May 2025.  
 
3. An initial training programme is set out for consideration at paragraph 6 of this 
report. To aid the content and further development of the programme Members are 
asked to complete a short questionnaire regarding their knowledge of areas the Audit 
and Governance Committee will consider. The questionnaire is attached at Appendix 1 
for consideration. Once the returns have been reviewed the training programme will be 
focused towards areas of need / interest. 
 
4. The training programme has been devised which has been based on the following 
premises: 

 

 Short sessions held in advance of each Committee meeting throughout the 
year 

 The initial training sessions to focus on the key functions of the Committee 

 Wherever possible, the training sessions will be linked to the training 
programme so that members received the appropriate information in advance 
of the relevant item on the agenda 

 
Training Programme 

 
5. The proposed training programme for the remainder of 2021/22 is set out below. 
A more detailed programme based on the self-assessment returns up to the end of this 
administration will be brought back to this Committee in December for consideration and 
comment. 

 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Committee Date 
 

Training Subject Matter 

3 December 2021 
 

Fraud & Corruption 

March 2022 
 

Accounting Policies & Standards 

 
6. There may well be matters that arise during the training plan period which may 
lead to changes to the programme and members will be notified of any necessary 
changes as and when they occur.   
 
7. In addition, as requested at the last Committee meeting, the relevant training 
information will be circulated in advance of each training session to ensure that 
members are able to gain the most benefit from the session.  

  
 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
 
Mark Sanders, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Finance) 
Tel: 01905 846519 
mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Jenni Morris, Chief internal Auditor 
Tel: 01905 844405 
Email: jmorris4@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Simon Lewis, Committee Officer 
Tel: 01905 846621 
Email: slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendix – Knowledge survey questionnaire 
 

Page 46

mailto:mssanders@worcestershire.gov.uk


AGENDA ITEM 11 
  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

Appendix – Knowledge survey questionnaire 
 

Audit Committee Member – Knowledge Self-Assessment      September 2021 
 

Name:  

 
Questionnaire 

Area of Focus Self-Assessment Score 

No 
knowledge 

Basic 
knowledge 

Good 
knowledge 

Significant 
knowledge  

Any Comments 

Role of the Audit Committee: 

 Terms of Reference       

 Planning cycle      

 Regulatory overview – NAO, 

ARGA, PSAA, FCA, CIPFA and 

Government 

     

Role of Audit: 

 Internal Audit       

 External Audit      

 Risk based auditing      

  

P
age 47



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Area of Focus Self-Assessment Score 

No 
knowledge 

Basic 
knowledge 

Good 
knowledge 

Significant 
knowledge  

Any Comments 

Role of Audit, continued: 

 Healthy Organisation       

 Testing      

 Reporting      

Risk Management & Governance: 

 Purpose      

 Strategic vs Operational      

 Principles & operation      

 Appetite & monitoring      

 Annual Governance Statement      

 Conflicts of Interest      

 3rd Parties      

 Our constitution & schemes of 

delegations 

     

P
age 48



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Area of Focus Self-Assessment Score 

No 
knowledge 

Basic 
knowledge 

Good 
knowledge 

Significant 
knowledge  

Any Comments 

Risk Management & Governance, continued: 

 Whistle blowing      

 Code of Conduct      

Final Accounts: 

 Statements      

 Policies and accounting standards      

 Auditing Standards      

 Accounting Estimates      

 Property, Plant & Equipment      

 Materiality      

 Financial Control environment      

 Grants (including audit)      

 Group Accounts      

Area of Focus Self-Assessment Score 

P
age 49



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

No 
knowledge 

Basic 
knowledge 

Good 
knowledge 

Significant 
knowledge  

Any Comments 

Fraud & Corruption: 

 Our approach to Fraud      

 Detection       

 Prevention      

 Prosecution      

 National Fraud Initiative      

 Money Laundering      

Pensions: 

 Administration      

 Investments      

Financial Transactions: 

 Accounts Payable – Expenditure      

 Accounts receivable - Income      

 Debt      

P
age 50



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Area of Focus Self-Assessment Score 

No 
knowledge 

Basic 
knowledge 

Good 
knowledge 

Significant 
knowledge  

Any Comments 

Financial Transactions, continued: 

 Insurance      

Miscellaneous: 

 What other authorities / best 

practice looks like in public or 

private sectors 

     

 Finance Team workforce planning      

 Treasury Management      

 Capital Financing      

 Capital planning and programme      

 Financial business case appraisal      

 Budget monitoring      

 Value for Money      

 
 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 12 
  

 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

1. The Committee is asked to note its future work programme and consider 
whether there are any matters it would wish to be incorporated. 

 

Work Programme 
 

 
3 December 2021 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 
External Auditor – Annual Audit Letter 
Corporate Risk Report 
Training update 
 
March 2022 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 
Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 
Corporate Risk Report 
Income and Debt Management 
 
July 2022 
Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 
External Audit – Audit Findings Report  
Draft Annual Governance Statement 
Draft Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2022  
Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 
Corporate Risk Report 
Income and Debt Management 
 
September 2022  
Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 
External Auditor – Annual Audit Letter 
External Audit – Audit Findings Report  
Annual Governance Statement 
Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2022 
Corporate Risk Report 
Anti-Fraud Report 2021/22 
 
 

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 

Page 53



 

Audit and Governance Committee – 24 September 2021 

 

Simon Lewis, Committee Officer 
Tel: 01905 846621 
Email: slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) there are no background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report. 

Page 54

mailto:slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report
	au2021-09-24 IA Progress Report - App1 - Audit Status
	au2021-09-24 IA Progress Report - App2 - Audit Actions

	6 Statutory Accounts and Pension Fund 2020/21 - External Audit Findings Report
	7 Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
	au2021-09-24 Annual Governance Statement - App - AGS

	8 Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
	9 Risk Management Report
	au2021-09-24 Risk Management update - App1 - Risk profiles
	au2021-09-24 Risk Management update - App2 - Risk reporting
	au2021-09-24 Risk Management update - App3 - Covid Risk reporting

	10 Income and Debt Management
	11 Training Programme
	12 Work Programme

